
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to 
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, May 18, 2016 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the May 4, 2016 Meeting 

3. Condominium Plat – Kadlec Drive Condominiums 
Review and consideration of Addendum No. 1 to Kadlec Drive Condominium Plat located at 
2660 Kadlec Drive 

4. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – Elmwood Avenue 
Review and consideration of a three-lot Certified Survey Map located on the southeast corner 
of Elmwood and Park Avenues in the Town of Beloit 

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

6. Adjournment 

 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Ashley Rosenbaum in the Planning and Building 
Services Office at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed:  May 12, 2016 Approved: Julie Christensen, Community 
Development Director 



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, May 4, 2016 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. Commissioners Tinder, Finnegan, Ruster, 
Faragher, Johnson, Weeden, and Councilor Leavy were present. 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the April 6, 2016 Meeting 

Commissioner Tinder indicated there were two minor errors in the last paragraph of item numbers 3 
and 4. It should read “Commissioner Tinder moved to approve the motion” in place of “Commissioner 
Tinder moved to approve the minutes.” 

Commissioner Tinder moved to approve the amended minutes from the April 6, 2016 meeting. 
Commissioner Weeden seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  

3. Street Vacation – Portion of the Springbrook Court Right-of-Way 
Public hearing, review and consideration of the vacation of a small portion of the Springbrook Court 
right-of-way in front of the Department of Public Works (DPW) Operations Facility located at 2351 
Springbrook Court 

Mr. Drew Pennington, Director of Planning and Building Services, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  

Commissioner Johnson inquired into whether there would be any concerns with the utility easement 
in regards to the location of the monument sign. Chris Walsh, Director of Public Works Operations, 
stated that there would not.  

Commission Johnson moved to approve the motion. Commissioner Tinder seconded the motion. The 
motion passed, voice vote.  

4. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

The CSM of 2401 Stateline Road, the Stormwater and Drainage Way Easement for 555 Willowbrook 
Road, Conditional Use Permit for 549 Shirland Ave, and the Relocation Order for the Branigan Road 
realignment were approved by the City Council. The PUD for the previous Staples building was 
withdrawn. The Ordinances for Storm Water Control and the third accessory structure for the new 
solid waste containers were also approved.   

5. Adjournment 

 The meeting adjourned at 7:10pm.  

Minutes respectfully submitted by Ashley Rosenbaum 



May 18 Staff Report, Kadlec Drive Condo Plat Addendum No. 1     

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: May 18, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: 3 File Number: FS-2016-01 

Applicant: Harris & Associates, Inc. 
 

Owner: DMW Development Location: 2660 Kadlec Drive 

Zoning: PUD, Planned Unit Develop. Land Use: Multifamily Residential Lot Area: 9 Acres 
 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Harris & Associates, on behalf of DMW Development, has submitted the attached Condo Plat, which is officially known as 
Addendum No. 1 to Kadlec Drive Condominium Plat, for the property located at 2660 Kadlec Drive. The proposed Condo 
Plat includes the construction of 42 additional units in five additional buildings to complete the Kadlec Drive Condominium 
project. The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the property involved in this request. Section 12.04 
of the Subdivision Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to review the plat prior to City Council consideration. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 This project was originally approved and zoned as a Planned Unit Development (PUD) in 2006, and the PUD 
Resolution authorizes up to 48 condo units. 

 In 2007, the developer obtained approval of a Condo Plat for only 36 units. The developer constructed the first 6-
unit condo building before discontinuing this development during the recession. The proposed change to the 
condo plat is consistent with the property’s existing PUD zoning classification, and no additional zoning actions 
are necessary. 

 Of the five proposed buildings, four are 8-unit buildings and one is a 10-unit building. All of the proposed units are 
two-stories in height with an attached garage and a patio facing the internal pond. Additional accessory features 
include a mailroom building, maintenance garage, and visitor parking stalls. A rendering is attached. 

 The applicant recently submitted site plans, which are being reviewed by City staff. 
 Public facilities and infrastructure exist in this area and the properties receive the full range of municipal services. 
 The Assessor’s Office has reviewed the plat and has noted that unit addresses may need revision. 
 The City’s other Review Agents have reviewed the plat and have not submitted any comments or concerns. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Planned Neighborhood uses for the subject property. This recommendation 
is intended to encourage a mix of residential housing types, with overall densities of 4 to 8 units per acre. At 5.3 units per 
acre, the proposed plat is consistent with this recommendation. Consideration supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The proposed plat will allow the developer to construct the previously 

approved number of dwelling units, which are in close proximity to existing goods, services, and employment 
opportunities. 

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – This project will increase the 

availability of new, high-quality residential units that are demanded by existing and potential residents, 
specifically young professionals who work in the greater Beloit area but are not interested in buying a single-
family house. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Addendum No. 1 to Kadlec Drive 
Condominium Plat, for the property located at 2660 Kadlec Drive in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The City Assessor’s Office shall assign all unit numbers before the plat may be recorded. 
2. The applicant shall record the plat with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall provide the Planning 

Division with a copy of the recorded plat by December 31, 2016. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Proposed Plat, Previously Approved Plat, Rendering, and Application. 



May 18 Staff Report, Kadlec Drive Condo Plat Addendum No. 1     



May 18 Staff Report, Kadlec Drive Condo Plat Addendum No. 1     

Proposed 48-Unit Condo Plat (2016) 



May 18 Staff Report, Kadlec Drive Condo Plat Addendum No. 1     

 

 

 



May 18 Staff Report, Kadlec Drive Condo Plat Addendum No. 1   
  

Approved 36-Unit Condo Plat (2007) 



May 18 Staff Report, Kadlec Drive Condo Plat Addendum No. 1   
  

 



May 18 Staff Report, Kadlec Drive Condo Plat Addendum No. 1   
  

 



May 18 Staff Report, Kadlec Drive Condo Plat Addendum No. 1 

 



CITY OF BELOIT 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: May 18, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CSM-2016-04 

Applicant: RH Batterman Owner: Forward Construction Location: Elmwood Avenue, Town of 
Beloit 

Existing Zoning: R2, Single and Two 
Family Residential District (Town 
Zoning) 

Existing Land Use: Vacant CSM Area: 1.61 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
In accordance with Section 12.05 of the Subdivision Ordinance, the applicant has submitted an Application for Review of a 
Minor Subdivision and three-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at the SE corner of Elmwood Avenue 
and Park Avenue in the Town of Beloit within the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction. The attached Location & Zoning Map 
shows the location of the property involved in this application.  
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The proposed CSM will create three lots from five existing platted lots. These lots are proposed to be developed for 
two-family residential uses in the Town of Beloit. 

 Proposed Lot 1 is 28,178 sq.ft. and has frontage on Elmwood Avenue and Park Avenue. Proposed Lots 2 and 3 are 
each 21,000 sq.ft. and have frontage on Elmwood Avenue. 

 Charter Communications noted the utilities along the southern border or the three parcels that the applicant should 
be aware of once building commences. 

 City Engineering expressed a concern regarding driveway access to Proposed Lot 1. If the lot is developed as a 
duplex, the driveway should as far east and south as possible in order to maximize the distance between the 
driveway and the intersection of Park Avenue and Elmwood Avenue. A condition of approval has been added to 
reflect this concern. 

 Water Resources noted that Proposed Lot 1 is served by two water service laterals while Proposed Lots 2 and 3 are 
currently not served. Hook-up to City water will be required for this development. A condition of approval has been 
added to reflect this. 

 No other comments, concerns, or recommendations were received from the City Review Agents. 
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The subject property is intended for Single Family Residential-Urban uses according to the Future Land Use Map. The intent 
of the land division is not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 
the property located at the SE corner of Elmwood Avenue and Park Avenue in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall provide the Planning and 
Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by December 31, 2016. 

2. The driveway for Proposed Lot 1 shall be at least 50 feet from the intersection of Park Avenue and Elmwood Avenue, 
as measured at the right-of-way. 

3. As part of the development of this land, hook-up to the City’s water utility is required.  
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location Map, Application, CSM, and Resolution. 



 



 
 



 



RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A THREE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SE CORNER OF ELMWOOD AVENUE AND 

PARK AVENUE IN THE TOWN OF BELOIT 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City 

of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of 

the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within 

the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at the SE 

corner of Elmwood Avenue and Park Avenue in the Town of Beloit is located within the 

extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the proposed  

three-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

 

Lots 25, 26, 27, 28 and 29 OF CRYSTAL HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION BEING A 

PART OF THE SE ¼ OF THE SW ¼ OF SECTION 13, T. 1 N., R. 12 E., BELOIT 

TOWNSHIP, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN, Containing 1.61 Acres, more or less. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Plan Commission of the City 

of Beloit does hereby approve the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 

the SE corner of Elmwood Avenue and Park Avenue in the Town of Beloit, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

1. The applicant shall record the CSM with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall 

provide the Planning and Building Services Division with a copy of the recorded CSM by 

December 31, 2016. 

2. The driveway for Proposed Lot 1 shall be at least 50 feet from the intersection of Park 

Avenue and Elmwood Avenue, as measured at the right-of-way. 

3. As part of the development of this land, hook-up to the City’s water utility is required.  

 

Adopted this 18th day of May, 2016. 

 

 

   

                                                                             James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairperson 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 ___ 

Julie Christensen, Community Development Director 

 


	05-18-2016 Agenda.pdf
	Review and consideration of Addendum No. 1 to Kadlec Drive Condominium Plat located at 2660 Kadlec Drive
	4. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – Elmwood Avenue
	Review and consideration of a three-lot Certified Survey Map located on the southeast corner of Elmwood and Park Avenues in the Town of Beloit
	5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items

	05-04-2016 Plan Commission Minutes.pdf
	Public hearing, review and consideration of the vacation of a small portion of the Springbrook Court right-of-way in front of the Department of Public Works (DPW) Operations Facility located at 2351 Springbrook Court
	Mr. Drew Pennington, Director of Planning and Building Services, presented the staff report and recommendation.
	Commissioner Johnson inquired into whether there would be any concerns with the utility easement in regards to the location of the monument sign. Chris Walsh, Director of Public Works Operations, stated that there would not.
	Commission Johnson moved to approve the motion. Commissioner Tinder seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.

	May 18 Staff Report, Kadlec Drive Condo Plat Addendum No. 1.pdf
	CITY OF BELOIT
	REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION
	Request Overview/Background Information:
	Harris & Associates, on behalf of DMW Development, has submitted the attached Condo Plat, which is officially known as Addendum No. 1 to Kadlec Drive Condominium Plat, for the property located at 2660 Kadlec Drive. The proposed Condo Plat includes the...
	Key Issues:
	 This project was originally approved and zoned as a Planned Unit Development (PUD) in 2006, and the PUD Resolution authorizes up to 48 condo units.
	 In 2007, the developer obtained approval of a Condo Plat for only 36 units. The developer constructed the first 6-unit condo building before discontinuing this development during the recession. The proposed change to the condo plat is consistent wit...
	 Of the five proposed buildings, four are 8-unit buildings and one is a 10-unit building. All of the proposed units are two-stories in height with an attached garage and a patio facing the internal pond. Additional accessory features include a mailro...
	 The applicant recently submitted site plans, which are being reviewed by City staff.
	 Public facilities and infrastructure exist in this area and the properties receive the full range of municipal services.
	 The Assessor’s Office has reviewed the plat and has noted that unit addresses may need revision.
	 The City’s other Review Agents have reviewed the plat and have not submitted any comments or concerns.
	Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
	The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Planned Neighborhood uses for the subject property. This recommendation is intended to encourage a mix of residential housing types, with overall densities of 4 to 8 units per acre. At 5.3 units per acre, the p...
	Sustainability:
	 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The proposed plat will allow the developer to construct the previously approved number of dwelling units, which are in close proximity to existing goods, services, and employment opportunities.
	 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
	 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
	 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – This project will increase the availability of new, high-quality residential units that are demanded by existing and potential residents, specifically young professionals ...
	Staff Recommendation:
	The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Addendum No. 1 to Kadlec Drive Condominium Plat, for the property located at 2660 Kadlec Drive in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions:
	1. The City Assessor’s Office shall assign all unit numbers before the plat may be recorded.
	2. The applicant shall record the plat with the Rock County Register of Deeds and shall provide the Planning Division with a copy of the recorded plat by December 31, 2016.
	Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A
	Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Proposed Plat, Previously Approved Plat, Rendering, and Application.

	May 18 Staff Report, CSM, Elmwood Avenue.pdf

